
CITY OF LAKE GENEVA 

626 GENEVA STREET 

LAKE GENEVA, WI 

 

PLAN COMMISSION MEETING 

MONDAY FEBRUARY 18, 2019 - 6:00 PM 

COUNCIL CHAMBERS, CITY HALL 

Agenda 
 

   

1. Meeting called to order by Tom Hartz. 

 

2. Roll Call. 

 

3. Approve Minutes of the January 21, 2019 Plan Commission meeting as distributed. 

  

4. Comments from the public as allowed by Wis. Stats. §19.84(2), limited to items on this 

agenda, except for public hearing items.  Comments will be limited to five (5) minutes. 

 

5. Acknowledgment of Correspondence. 

 

6. Downtown Design Review: 

 

a. Application by Kathy George, 3389 South Shore Dr, Delavan, WI 53115, for the 

request to install a sign to an already approved awning to the exterior of the 

property, located at 741 W. Main St., in the Business Central (BC) zoning district, 

Tax Key No. ZOP00272. 

 

b. Application by Angie Rinn, 3641 Berry Ct, Crystal Lake, IL, 60012 for the 

request to install an on building sign to the exterior of the property, located at 239 

Cook St., in the Business Central (BC) zoning district, Tax Key No. ZOP0253. 

 

7. Review and Recommendation of an Extraterritorial Jurisdiction (ETJ) CSM for Applicant 

John & Jelka Leedle, N891 Hwy 120, Lake Geneva, WI 53147, for the Joseph Leedle 

N879 State Road 120, Lake Geneva, WI 53147 property for the separation of farm 

structures from the farmland as identified on the certified survey dated 12/27/2018 

located in the Town of Linn. Tax Key No. IL2600001. 

 

8. Review and Recommendation of an Extraterritorial Jurisdiction (ETJ) CSM for Applicant 

Purnell Enterprise LLC., N1886 Hwy 120, Lake Geneva, WI 53147, for the lot line 

adjustment to include the approximate 10’ strip of land that is currently enclosed by a 

fence as identified on the certified survey dated July 27, 2018 Tax Key No. 

MA403300001. 

 

9. Review and Recommendation of a Land Division filed by Anagnos Properties, Inc., P.O. 

Box 1117, Lake Geneva, WI 53147, to create a 3 lot Certified Survey Map (CSM) for the 

property located at 811 Wrigley Dr. to generate three individual lots for the property in 

the Central Business (CB) zoning district, Tax Key No. ZOP00341-ZOP00345. 



 

10. Public Hearing and Recommendation on an application for the Precise Implementation 

Plan (PIP) filed by Daniel E. Schuld, 281 Yerkes Ave, Hampshire, IL 60140, requesting 

the change of use for the building at 727 Geneva St, for a Brewery, Tap Room, & Gift 

Shop, and renovations to the existing exterior deck and patio, located in the Planned 

Development (PD) zoning district, Tax Key No. ZOP00157. 

 

11. Public Hearing and Recommendation on an application for a Conditional Use Permit 

filed by Tom Koenig, 5802 Arlington Dr., Palatine, IL 60067, for the property located at 

715 LaGrange Dr. to utilize the Single Family – 4 (SR-4) zoning in the Estate   

Residential – 1 (ER-1) zoning, to raze and rebuild a new Single Family Residence.       

Tax Key No. ZLE00016. 

 

12. Public Hearing and Recommendation on an application for the Precise Implementation 

Plan (PIP) filed by McMurr II, LLC, 351 Hubbard, Suite 610, Chicago, IL. 60654, 

requesting a Planned Development for the property located on Lake Geneva Blvd. in the 

Summerhaven Condominium Subdivision to allow for the Precise Implementation Plan to 

continue the development of Phase II, located in Planned Development (PD) zoning 

district, Tax Key Nos. ZSUM00001 thru ZSUM0000247. 

 

13. Continuation of the Public Hearing and Recommendation on an application for the 

General Development Plan (GDP) filed by Omega Homes, 201 O’Connor Dr. Suite 101, 

Elkhorn, WI 53121, requesting a Planned Development of 58 Single Family Homes at the 

property on LaSalle Street, also known as the Vistas of Lake Geneva (formerly Regent 

Hills subdivision), located in the Multi-Family – 8 (MR-8) zoning district, Tax Key No. 

ZA424700001. 

 

14. Continuation of the Public Hearing and Recommendation on an application for the 

Conditional Use Permit (CUP) filed by House Around the Corner LLC., 3389 South 

Shore Dr., Delavan, WI 53115, requesting a (CUP) to Raze or Remove the existing 

building located at 832 Geneva Street, Lake Geneva, WI 53147, located in Central 

Business (CB) zoning district, Tax Key No. ZOP00252. 

 

15. Continuation of the Public Hearing and Recommendation on an application for the 

General Development Plan (GDP) filed by House Around the Corner LLC., 3389 South 

Shore Dr., Delavan, WI 53115, requesting a Planned Development to construct a 5600 

square foot commercial building at 832 Geneva Street, Lake Geneva, WI 53147, located 

in Central Business (CB) zoning district, Tax Key No. ZOP00252. 

 

16. Adjournment. 
 

 

 

QUORUM OF CITY COUNCIL MEMBERS MAY BE PRESENT 

Requests from persons with disabilities, who need assistance in order to participate in this meeting, should be made to the City Clerk's office, in order for appropriate 

Accommodations. 

Posted 2/13/2019 



1 of 4 

January 21, 2019 Plan Commission Minutes 

 

PLAN COMMISSION MEETING 
MONDAY, JANUARY 21, 2019 – 6:00 PM 

COUNCIL CHAMBERS, CITY HALL 
 

Mayor Hartz called the meeting to order at 6:00 p.m.  

 

Roll Call.  Present: Mayor Hartz, Alderman Doug Skates, Sarah Hill, Ted Horne, Ann Esarco, Michael Krajovic. Absent 

(Excused) John Gibbs. Also Present: City Planner Slavney, City Attorney Draper, Building and Zoning Administrator 

Walling, Building & Zoning Administrative Assistant Follensbee 

 

Approve Minutes of the December 17
th

 Plan Commission meeting as distributed.  

Krajovic/Horne motion to approve.  Motion carried unanimously. 

 

Comments from the public as allowed by Wis. Stats. §19.84(2), limited to items on this agenda, except for public 

hearing items. Comments will be limited to 5 minutes.  

 

Acknowledgement of Correspondence.  

Correspondence was received from Alex Paredes, 330 Center Street, in favor of moving the building from 832 Geneva 

Street to 333 Center Street. Correspondence was received from Richard Steinberg, 1032 Williams Street, opposing the 

moving of the building from 832 Geneva Street to 333 Center Street and opposing the construction of a modern building 

in its place. Correspondence was also received from Charlene Klein, 817 Wisconsin Street, opposing the razing of the 

building at 832 Geneva Street and opposing the construction of a modern building at this same location. All 

correspondence has been distributed to the Plan Commission and the City Council. 

 

 

Downtown Design Review 

 

Application by 737 W. Main Street LLP, for the request to install an on building sign and a revised awning to 

the exterior of the property, located at 737 W. Main St., in the Business Central (BC) zoning district, Tax Key 

No. ZOP00273. 

 Tom Bachmann, 1856 Norman Blvd, Park Ridge, IL 60068, applicant, presented the request. Mayor Hartz asked about 

the possibility of a projecting sign placed under the awning identifying the store type. A discussion followed. 

Commissioner Hill stated there are existing projecting signs and this concept may be a possible direction the city is 

open to as a global, aesthetic perspective for the Downtown.  

 

Esarco/Skates motion to approve the on building sign and revised awning and include all staff recommendations. 

Roll Call:  Hartz, Skates, Hill, Horne, Esarco, Krajovic “yes.”  Motion carried unanimously. 

 

 

  Application by 725 W. Main Street LLP, for the request to install an on awning sign and a revised awning to 

the exterior of the property, located at 725 W. Main St., in the Business Central (BC) zoning district, Tax Key 

No. ZOP0276. 

Tom Bachmann, 1856 Norman Blvd, Park Ridge, IL 60068, applicant, presented the request. Bachmann stated they 

have taken over the lease for this location. Bachmann asked for the flexibility of the positive and negative points of the 

name to be allowed to 2 inches beyond the 8 inches rule. 

 

Hill/Horne motion to approve the on building sign and revised awning and include all staff recommendations. 

Roll Call:  Hartz, Skates, Hill, Horne, Esarco, Krajovic “yes.”  Motion carried unanimously. 

 

 

 

 

 



2 of 4 

January 21, 2019 Plan Commission Minutes 

 

 Public Hearing and Recommendation of a General Development Plan (GDP) filed by Terence Pisano, 201 

Broad St., Lake Geneva, WI 53147, for the property located at 333 Center St. The applicant is requesting to 

relocate the existing building currently located at 832 Geneva St. and to utilize exceptions to the site setbacks 

and site zoning restrictions. The property is located in the Neighborhood Office (NO) zoning district, Tax Key 

No. ZOP00139. 

 Chris Pisano, representing Terence Pisano, presented the request. Planner Slavney said the GDP submittal is 

complete. Hill asked about the “high level steps” for this project, who will oversee the project and the timeline. 

Pisano stated there are many steps in the process, including components such as the weather, contingent on 

conditions, economic elements, and permits through the city. A discussion followed. Terence Pisano clarified his 

responsibilities with the timeline. Chris Pisano explained the process of the prep work involved and the transport of 

the building in this project. Hartz summarized the five exceptions requested in the GDP application and stated the 

issues discussed will be addressed in the Developers Agreement. 

 

 Speaker #1: Trish Schaefer, 403 Center Street, in favor of moving the building to the 333 Center Street location. 

  

Krajovic/Horne motion to close the Public Hearing. Motion carried unanimously. 

 

Hartz/Hill motion to approve the GDP to relocate the current building at 832 Geneva Street to 333 Center Street, utilize 

exceptions to site setbacks and site zoning restrictions and include all staff recommendations and fact finding in the 

affirmative. 

Roll Call:  Hartz, Skates, Hill, Horne, Esarco, Krajovic “yes.”  Motion carried unanimously. 

 

 

 Public Hearing and Recommendation of a Precise Implementation Plan (PIP) filed by Terence Pisano, 201 

Broad St., Lake Geneva, WI 53147, for the property located at 333 Center St. The applicant is requesting to 

relocate the existing building currently located at 832 Geneva St. and to utilize exceptions to the site setbacks 

and site zoning restrictions. The property is located in the Neighborhood Office (NO) zoning district, Tax Key 

No. ZOP00139. 

 Chris Pisano, representing Terence Pisano, asked for any questions regarding the PIP application. Hartz asked if sign 

approval is part of the PIP. Pisano verified yes. Zoning Administrator Walling stated the request meets the sign 

standards of the City and said Utility Director Gajewski has reviewed the application with no further input. Hartz 

asked about the trees in the parkway. Pisano said the trees will be removed and replaced. Hartz clarified the 

Developers Agreement for this project will need Council approval. Hill asked about the timing of the Developers 

Agreement and the next Council meeting. Attorney Draper said there will be 2 Developers Agreements because it is 

a unique situation, stating this project application would be subject to an acceptable Developers Agreement. 

 

Skates/Horne motion to close the Public Hearing. Motion carried unanimously. 

 

Esarco/Hill motion to approve the PIP to relocate the current building at 832 Geneva Street to 333 Center Street, utilize 

exceptions to site setbacks and site zoning restrictions and include all staff recommendations and fact finding in the 

affirmative. 

Roll Call:  Hartz, Skates, Hill, Horne, Esarco, Krajovic “yes.”  Motion carried unanimously. 

 

Commissioner Hill left Council Chambers 6:59 pm 

Commissioner Hill returned 7:01 pm 

 

 Public Hearing and Recommendation on an application for the Precise Implementation Plan (PIP) filed by 

Daniel E. Schuld, 281 Yerkes Ave, Hampshire, IL 60140, requesting the change of use for the building at 727 

Geneva St, for a Brewery, Tap Room, & Gift Shop, to include a building addition, and renovations to the 

existing exterior deck and patio, located in the Planned Development (PD) zoning district, Tax Key No. 

ZOP00157. 

 Ken Etten, representing the owner, Dan Schuld, presented the request. Etten stated one change from the GDP was the 

sign which will no longer include a grain bin but instead a monument sign. Other changes since the GDP: the 

existing garage would stay there with no future rebuild, and a seasonal food cart near the beer garden. As stated in 

the GDP application, the owner would like to have outside acoustical musical entertainment. Etten explained the 



3 of 4 

January 21, 2019 Plan Commission Minutes 

 

signage and exterior finish of the building. Dan Schuld, 1776 Prestwick Drive, Inverness, IL 60067, said he would 

like to create a family entertainment type of brewery, with hours of 3-9pm or later on weekends, with the possibility 

of renting out space for weddings, etc. Commissioner Krajovic asked if they would serve food. Schuld said there 

would be no commercial kitchen but maybe food packages. The food cart would have to be licensed by someone 

else. Alderman Skates asked about the outdoor food trailer, landscaping plan, garage, cleaning solutions used and 

how it affects the sewer system. Skates suggested the PIP application was not complete. Slavney agrees the PIP 

submittal is incomplete and asked to continue this application to the next month. Slavney encouraged the 

commissioners to give feedback to better prepare the applicant for the meeting next month. Walling asked for general 

locations and dimensions of sign would be beneficial to the application. Commissioner Esarco shared concerns for 

food cart. Hill recognized the revised memo dated after the deadline and stated the staff hasn’t had time to review the 

changes. Hill was surprised there is no food offered inside but an outdoor seasonal food trailer was suggested. Hill 

shared her concerns with the food trailer and also felt the PIP application was not complete. Hartz reiterated missing 

items needed for next month: landscape plan, complete food trailer explanation, utility director needs sewage 

explanation, operation plan – business hours for the brewery - (Hartz suggested asking for more hours than needed) 

and state the garage would remain. The new paperwork for the PIP application would be due by January 31
st
. 

 

 

Esarco/Skates motion to continue the Public Hearing to the next Plan Commission meeting. Motion carried unanimously. 

 

 

  Public Hearing and Recommendation on an application to amend the existing Precise Implementation Plan 

(PIP) filed by Oakfire Properties LLC, for the Oakfire Restaurant, requesting to change the second floor deck 

area to install a roof structure and roll up temporary windows, located in the Central Business (CB) zoning 

district at 831Wrigley Dr., Tax Key No. ZOP00340. 

 David Scotney, owner of Oakfire, 831 Wrigley Drive, presented his request. Skates asked about the pitch and snow 

loads. Scotney said the snow loads are above what is required in terms of the weight it can carry.  

 

Hill/Skates motion to close the Public Hearing. Motion carried unanimously. 

 

Hill/ Esarco motion to approve an amendment to the PIP to change the second floor deck area with a roof structure and 

roll up temporary windows and include all staff recommendations and fact finding in the affirmative. 

Roll Call:  Hartz, Skates, Hill, Horne, Esarco, Krajovic “yes.”  Motion carried unanimously. 

 

 

 Continuation of the Public Hearing and Recommendation on an application for the General Development 

Plan (GDP) filed by Omega Homes, 201 O’Connor Dr. Suite 101, Elkhorn, WI 53121, requesting a Planned 

Development of 58 Single Family Homes at the property on LaSalle Street, also known as the Vistas of Lake 

Geneva (formerly Regent Hills subdivision), located in the Multi-Family – 8 (MR-8) zoning district, Tax Key 

No. ZA424700001. 

 

Applicant has requested to continue the Public Hearing. 

 

Hartz/Skates motion to continue the Public Hearing to the next Plan Commission meeting. Motion carried unanimously. 

 

 

  Continuation of the Public Hearing and Recommendation on an application for the Conditional Use Permit 

(CUP) filed by House Around the Corner LLC., 3389 South Shore Dr., Delavan, WI 53115, requesting a 

(CUP) to Raze or Remove the existing building located at 832 Geneva Street, Lake Geneva, WI 53147, located 

in Central Business (CB) zoning district, Tax Key No. ZOP00252. 

 

 Applicant has requested to continue the Public Hearing. 

 

 

Hartz/Skates motion to continue the Public Hearing to the next Plan Commission meeting. Motion carried unanimously. 



4 of 4 

January 21, 2019 Plan Commission Minutes 

 

 Continuation of the Public Hearing and Recommendation on an application for the General Development 

Plan (GDP) filed by House Around the Corner LLC., 3389 South Shore Dr., Delavan, WI 53115, requesting a 

Planned Development to construct a 5600 square foot commercial building at 832 Geneva Street, Lake 

Geneva, WI 53147, located in Central Business (CB) zoning district, Tax Key No. ZOP00252. 

 

Applicant has requested to continue the Public Hearing. 

 

 

Hartz/Skates motion to continue the Public Hearing to the next Plan Commission meeting. Motion carried unanimously. 

 

 

      Adjournment.  Esarco/Skates motion to adjourn at 7:36 p.m. Motion carried unanimously. 

 

        

/s/ Brenda Follensbee, Building & Zoning Administrative Assistant 
 

THESE ARE NOT OFFICIAL MINUTES UNTIL APPROVED BY THE PLAN COMMISSION 



 1 

STAFF REPORT 

To Lake Geneva Plan Commission 

Meeting Date: February 18, 2019 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Description: 

The applicant is submitting an application for Downtown Design Review for the request to install a Sign 

on the previously approved Awning to the exterior of the building above the public right of way at     

741 W. Main Street Tax Key No. ZOP00272.  

 

The City reviews all exterior alteration in the CB zoning district to confirm that they conform to the 

Downtown Design standards, particularly quantity, size, and color requirements.  

 

Proposed colors correspond within the permitted downtown guidelines. 

 

Staff Recommendations:  

- Staff recommends discussion on the rehabilitation of the front façade which was not identified in 

this request but needs attention and can be seen in the photo and behind the proposed awning. 

 

The colors submitted have been reviewed and comply with the Historic Colors of the historic color 

palette. 

 

Staff recommends approval of the Awning installation request as submitted with the discussion on the 

front façade rehabilitation approval. 

Applicant: 

Kathy George 

3389 South Shore Drive  

Delavan, WI 53115 

Request: 

741 W. Main Street  

Downtown Design Review for Sign & Awning 

Installation  

Tax Key No. ZOP00272 

Agenda Item #6a 









 1 

STAFF REPORT 

To Lake Geneva Plan Commission 

Meeting Date: February 18, 2019 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Description: 

The applicant is submitting an application for Downtown Design Review for the request to install a Sign 

on the building above the public right of way at 741 W. Main Street Tax Key No. ZOP00253.  

 

The City reviews all exterior alteration in the CB zoning district to confirm that they conform to the 

Downtown Design standards, particularly quantity, size, and color requirements.  

 

Proposed colors correspond within the permitted downtown guidelines. 

 

Staff Recommendations:  

The colors submitted have been reviewed and comply with the Historic Colors of the historic color 

palette. 

 

Staff recommends approval of the Awning installation request as submitted. 

Applicant: 

Angie Rinn 

3611 Berry Ct  

Crystal Lake, IL 60012 

Request: 

239 Cook Street  

Downtown Design Review for Sign installation  

Tax Key No. ZOP00253 

Agenda Item #6b 









 1 

STAFF REPORT 

To Lake Geneva Plan Commission 

Meeting Date:  February 18, 2019 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Description:  

This request is to approve an Extraterritorial Zoning Plat review for the separation of farm 

structures from farmland Tax Key No. IL2600001 located in the Town of Linn. 

 

This request is to approve the proposed Certified Survey Map dated 12/27/2018 for the property 

located at N891 State Road 120 for a 4.904 acre land separation to include the farm buildings 

from the primary property located adjacent to this request. 

 

The parcel included in this request does not currently have any buildings on the property. 

 

Action by the Plan Commission: 

Recommendation to the Common Council on the proposed Exterritorial Zoning request (ETZ)  

As part of the consideration of the requested ETZ, the Plan Commission is required to: 

 Provide the Common Council with a recommendation regarding the proposed ETZ 

review. 

 

Staff Recommendation on the proposed  

1. Staff recommends that the Plan Commission recommend approval of the Exterritorial 

Zoning request (ETZ): as submitted, subject to approval Walworth County Land Use 

Zoning. 

Agenda Item: 7 

Applicant: 

John & Jelka Leedle 

N891 State Road 120 

Lake Geneva, WI 53147 

Request: ETZ Town of Lynn CSM 

Extraterritorial Zoning Plat review for the 

separation of farm structures from farmland 

Tax Key No. IL2600001 



Kapur & Associates, Inc. ~ 1224 S. Pine Street ~ Burlington, WI 53105 ~ www.kapurengineers.com                                 Page 1 of 1 
 
D:\Walworth_Co\Lake Geneva_City\Gov\180015_2018_Lake Geneva Plan Review 

                               Memo to the City of Lake Geneva 
 

  Phone: (262) 767-2747 
 Fax: (262) 767-2750 
 
 
To: Brenda Follensbee, Building & Zoning Clerk                  Date:     February 12, 2019 

   
From: Gary R. Splinter, P.L.S.       
   
CC: Fred Walling - Zoning Administrator 
 William Vanderstappen – Vanderstappen Land Surveying, Inc. 
  Greg Governatori - Kapur & Associates, Inc. 
 
Subject: Extraterritorial Review of Certified Survey Map for Joseph and Jelka 

Leedle N879 State Road 120 in the Town of Bloomfield 
    
  

 

We have completed a review of a Certified Survey Map prepared by William Vanderstappen 
of Vanderstappen Land Surveying, Inc. Our review was conducted to determine compliance with 
Chapter 236 of the Wisconsin State Statutes, Chapter 66 of the City of Lake Geneva Municipal 
Code and good surveying practices.  The Certified Survey Map dated December 27, 2018 was 
reviewed.  
 

Comments for the Certified Survey Map: 

• As per 66-36(1) & 66-15 Please revise the “Town Approval” to the “City of Lake Geneva 
Extraterritorial Approval” certificate, list the “Planning Commission” as the approver and remove 
the Chairman and Treasure signature lines with the Mayor and City Clerk.  

• As per 236.34 (1m)(c) Please list at the top of each sheet the location of the land by 
government lot, recorded private claim, quarter-quarter section, section, township, range and 
county noted. 

We recommend approval of the Certified Survey Map, if the above comments are addressed. Although 
the material has been reviewed, the surveyor is ultimately responsible for the thoroughness and accuracy of the 
Certified Survey Map with state statutes and municipal city code. 

Please contact me if you have any questions pertaining to this project. 

http://www.kapurengineers.com/












 1 

STAFF REPORT 

To Lake Geneva Plan Commission 

Meeting Date:  February 18, 2019 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Description:  

This request is to approve an Extraterritorial Zoning Plat review for the northeast property line 

adjustment to Tax Key No. MA403300001 located in the Town of Bloomfield. 

 

This request is to approve the proposed Certified Survey Map dated 7/27/2018 for the property 

located at N1886 State Road 120 for a property line adjustment of approximately 10’ of land that 

is currently enclosed by a fence. 

 

Action by the Plan Commission: 

Recommendation to the Common Council on the proposed Exterritorial Zoning request (ETZ)  

As part of the consideration of the requested ETZ, the Plan Commission is required to: 

 Provide the Common Council with a recommendation regarding the proposed ETZ 

review. 

 

Staff Recommendation on the proposed  

1. Staff recommends that the Plan Commission recommend approval of the Exterritorial 

Zoning request (ETZ): as submitted, subject to approval Walworth County Land Use 

Zoning. 

 

Agenda Item: 8 

Applicant: 

Purnell Enterprises LLC. 

N1886 State Road 120 

Lake Geneva, WI 53147 

Request: ETZ Town of Bloomfield CSM 

Extraterritorial Zoning Plat review for the 

property line adjustment 

Tax Key No. MA403300001 



Kapur & Associates, Inc. ~ 1224 S. Pine Street ~ Burlington, WI 53105 ~ www.kapurengineers.com                                 Page 1 of 1 
 
D:\Walworth_Co\Lake Geneva_City\Gov\180015_2018_Lake Geneva Plan Review 

                               Memo to the City of Lake Geneva 
 

  Phone: (262) 767-2747 
 Fax: (262) 767-2750 
 
 
To: Brenda Follensbee, Building & Zoning Clerk                  Date:     February 12, 2019 

   
From: Gary R. Splinter, P.L.S.       
   
CC: Fred Walling - Zoning Administrator 
 Mark Bolender – Ambit Land Surveying 
  Greg Governatori - Kapur & Associates, Inc. 
 
Subject: Extraterritorial Review of Certified Survey Map for Purnell Enterprises 

LLC in the Town of Bloomfield 
    
  

 

We have completed a review of a Certified Survey Map prepared by Mark A. Bolender of 
Ambit Land Surveying. Our review was conducted to determine compliance with Chapter 236 of 
the Wisconsin State Statutes, Chapter 66 of the City of Lake Geneva Municipal Code and good 
surveying practices.  The Certified Survey Map dated July 27, 2018 was reviewed.  
 

Comments for the Certified Survey Map: 

• As per 66-36(1) & 66-15 Please revise the City of Lake Geneva Extraterritorial Approval 
certificate to list the Planning Commission as the approver and not the “City Board”.  

We recommend approval of the Certified Survey Map, if the above comments are addressed. Although 
the material has been reviewed, the surveyor is ultimately responsible for the thoroughness and accuracy of the 
Certified Survey Map with state statutes and municipal city code. 

Please contact me if you have any questions pertaining to this project. 

http://www.kapurengineers.com/


 
 

EXPERIENCE IS THE DIFFERENCE 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 

February 1, 2019 
 
 
VIA EMAIL (bzadmin@cityoflakegeneva.com) 
  
Lake Geneva City Hall 
Attn:  Fred Walling 
Building & Zoning Administrator 
626 Geneva Street 
Lake Geneva, WI 53147 
 

Re: Parcel 1:  N1886 Hwy 120, Lake Geneva, WI, Tax Id No. MA403300001 
 Parcel 2:  N1922 Hwy 120, Lake Geneva, WI Tax Id No. MA403300002 
 Amount Owed as of January 31, 2019:  $12,202.65 
 

Dear Mr. Walling: 
 

Enclosed for the Plan Commission’s consideration is an Application for Land Division Review pursuant 
to Lake Geneva’s extraterritorial zoning authority of neighboring lands.  I have also enclosed for the 
Commission’s consideration Resolution No. 2018-R-09 dated November 12, 2018 from the Town of 
Bloomfield approving the lot line adjustment.  Further, I have enclosed the CSM prepared by Ambit Land 
Surveying identifying the ten foot area that is requested to be adjusted.  As you can see, the CSM has already 
been signed by the Town of Bloomfield and the notation on page 2 indicates that Walworth County is not 
required to sign off on the CSM.  The last step before the lot line adjustment can be recorded is review and 
approval by the City of Lake Geneva.  Finally, I have enclosed the application submitted to the Town of 
Bloomfield from which the Town approved the lot line adjustment application. 

 
I submit this request on behalf Purnell Enterprises, LLC for the Plan Commission meeting scheduled for 

February 18, 2019.  I will follow up the email request with the mailing of 20 copies of the application and 
supporting materials and mail the same to City Hall.  If you require anything further, please let me know.  
Thank you. 
 

Very truly yours, 
 

      /s/ Thomas M. Santarelli 
 

Thomas M. Santarelli 
Attorney at Law 

 

MADRIGRANO, AIELLO, 
& SANTARELLI, LLC 
Attorneys at Law 
 

1108 56th Street, Kenosha, WI 53140 
Phone:  262-657-2000 Fax: 262-657-2018 
http://kenoshalaw.com 

 

Joseph F. Madrigrano, Jr. 
Thomas P. Aiello, also licensed in IL 
Thomas M. Santarelli, also licensed in MN 
Nicholas J. Infusino 
Gianna Tenuta 



 
 

EXPERIENCE IS THE DIFFERENCE 
 
 

 
List of Enclosures 
 
 

1. Application for Land Division - Lake Geneva 

2. Resolution No. 2018-R-09 dated November 12, 2018 

3. Certified Survey Map 

4. Town of Bloomfield Planning and Zoning Application for Lot Line Adjustment 





























__________VILLAGE        TOWN__________ 
VILLAGE/TOWN OF BLOOMFIELD 

PLANNING AND ZONING 
APPLICATION FOR LOT LINE ADJUSTMENT (PAGE 1) 

 
Fee:  See Schedule. 
This application form is to be used for the approval of all transfers of land between adjoining property 
owners, when the land is of the same zoning district.  Attach one of the following, prepared by a 
Wisconsin Registered Land Surveyor: 
____If the lot line adjustment is between subdivision lots in the same subdivision, attach a Plat of
 Survey. 
____If the lot line adjustment is between metes and bounds parcels, attach a Plat of Survey. 
____If the lot line adjustment changes the exterior boundary of a subdivision, attach a Certified
 Survey Map (without County signature lines). 
____If the lot line adjustment changes the exterior boundary of a Certified Survey Map, attach a
 Certified Survey Map (without county signature lines). 
*For all lot line adjustments the following notation must be included on the Plat of Survey and on the 
deed: 
*For all lot line adjustments requiring a Certified Survey Map, the following notation shall be included in 
place of the County signature line: 
NOTE:  THIS LOT LINE ADJUSTMENT IS FOR THE PURPOSE OF A SALE OR EXCHANGE OF LAND BETWEEN 
ADJOINING LAND OWNERS THAT DOES NOT CREATE ADDITIONAL LOTS, AND THE ORIGINAL PARCELS 
ARE OT REDUCED BELOW THE MINIMUM SIZE REQUIRED BY THE VILLAGE/TOWN OF BLOOMFIELD’S 
MUNICIPAL CODES. 
***Please note:  A completed application, along with Plat of Survey or Certified Survey Map, and fees 
must be received by Zoning Administrator no later than the last day of any month in order to be put 
on the agenda for the Planning and Zoning Commission’s next hearing.*** 
 
Date:  ____________________________________ 
 
Affected Tax Parcel Number(s):  ___________________________ and ___________________________ 
 
Zoning District(s):  ________________________________ and _________________________________ 
 
Purpose of Transfer:  ___________________________________________________________________ 
 
Are the existing improvements?  __________ Yes __________ No 
 
If yes, are they serviced by:  __________ Public Sewer  __________Private Septic* 
*Please indicate septic system area on plat. 
 
Will this land transfer meet the minimum zoning district requirements of the Village/Town of 
Bloomfield’s Municipal Code for lot area and setbacks in relation to the applicable zoning districts? 
__________Yes  __________ No 
 
 
 

N1100 Town Hall Road, Pell Lake, WI   53157, Phone: 262-279-6039, Fax: 262-279-3545  Revised 08/2016 

X

X

October 2, 2018

MA40330001 MA40330002

Commercial Commercial

Transfer approximate 10' strip of land that is currently enclosed by a fence.

X

X

X







 1 

STAFF REPORT 

To Lake Geneva Plan Commission 

Meeting Date:  February 18, 2019 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Description: 

This request is to approve a proposed Certified Survey Map (CSM) to create a three lot CSM. 

The result of this CSM will be the creation of three compliant commercial lots, lot one will retain the 

existing commercial structure and lot two & three will be a vacant parcel. Both of the vacant parcels will 

comply with all of the minimum standards of the Central Business (CB) zoning. 

Project Details from submittal dated January 16, 2019 CSM Map project 6668.18 generated by surveyor 

Brian M. Calson: 

The proposed CSM drawing is provided on one page on project No.6668.18  

Lot 3: 24,491 sq. ft. (Popeye’s Building) 

Lot 2: 2,809 sq. ft. (vacant land) 

Lot 3: 2,484 sq. ft. (vacant land) 

Staff Review Comments: 

The proposed CSM has been submitted by staff to the Public Works & Utilities for review for 

compliance or concerns and none were identified as needed to be addressed with this land division. 

 

Action by the Plan Commission: 

Recommendation to the Common Council on the proposed Certified Survey Map (CSM): 

As part of the consideration of the requested CSM, the Plan Commission is required to: 

 Provide the Common Council with a recommendation regarding the proposed CSM. 

 

Staff Recommendation on the proposed Certified Survey Map (CSM): 

Staff recommends that the Plan Commission recommend approval of the CSM as submitted. 

 

Applicant: 

Anagnos Properties, Inc. 

P.O. Box 1117 

Lake Geneva, WI. 53147 

Request:  

Create a three lot Certified Survey Map (CSM)  

811 Wrigley Drive 

ZOP00341 – ZOP00345 

Agenda Item: 9 



Kapur & Associates, Inc. ~ 1224 S. Pine Street ~ Burlington, WI 53105 ~ www.kapurengineers.com                                 Page 1 of 1 
 
D:\Walworth_Co\Lake Geneva_City\Gov\160015_2016_Lake Geneva Plan Review 

                               Memo to the City of Lake Geneva 
 

  Phone: (262) 767-2747 
 Fax: (262) 767-2750 
 
 
To: Brenda Follensbee, Building & Zoning Clerk Date: January 30, 2019 

   
From: Gary R. Splinter, P.L.S.       
   
CC: Fred Walling - Zoning Administrator 
 Brian Carlson – Ferris, Hanson Associates 
  Greg Governatori - Kapur & Associates, Inc. 
 
Subject: Review of Certified Survey Map for Anagnos Properties LLC in the City 

of Lake Geneva 
    
  

 

We have completed a review of a Certified Survey Map prepared by Farris Hansen & Assoc. 
Inc. Our review was conducted to determine compliance with Chapter 236 of the Wisconsin State 
Statutes, Chapter 66-36 of the City of Lake Geneva Municipal Code and good surveying 
practices.  The Certified Survey Map dated January 16, 2019 was reviewed.  
 

Comments for the Certified Survey Map: 

• The Lake Geneva certificate should state “Lake Geneva Planning Commission Approval” 

We recommend approval of the Certified Survey Map contingent upon enclosed surveyor’s comments.       
Although the material has been reviewed, the surveyor is ultimately responsible for the thoroughness and 
accuracy of the Certified Survey Map with state statutes and municipal city code. 

Please contact me if you have any questions or comments pertaining to this project. 

http://www.kapurengineers.com/












1 

 

STAFF REPORT 

To Lake Geneva Plan Commission 

Meeting Date: February 18, 2019 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Description: 

The applicant is submitting a request for a Precise Implementation Plan (PIP) that would allow for the 

development of a Brewery, Tap-Room, & Gift Shops to be located at 727 Geneva Street.  

The alterations to the exterior building would include renovations to the deck and patio areas.  

 

Action by the Plan Commission: 

Recommendation to the Common Council on the proposed Precise Implementation Plan (PIP): 

As part of the consideration of the requested PIP, the Plan Commission is required to: 

 Provide the Common Council with a recommendation regarding the proposed PIP; 

 Include findings required by the Zoning Ordinance for PIPs; and, 

 Provide specific suggested requirements to modify the project as submitted. 

 

Staff Review Comments: 

No impacts to neighboring properties are anticipated. 

 

Required Plan Commission Findings on the PIP for Recommendation to the Common Council: 

A proposed PIP must be reviewed by the standards, below: 

A. If, after the public hearing, the Commission wishes to recommend approval, then the appropriate 

fact finding would be all of the following: 

1.  In general, the proposed Precise Implementation Plan (PIP) is in harmony with the purposes, 

goals, objectives, policies and standards of the City's Comprehensive Plan, Zoning Ordinance, 

and any other plan, program, or ordinance adopted, or under consideration pursuant to official 

notice by the City. 

2.  Specific to this site, the proposed Precise Implementation Plan (PIP) is in harmony with the 

purposes, goals, objectives, policies and standards of the City's Comprehensive Plan, Zoning 

Applicant: 

Daniel Schuld 

281 Yerkes Ave 

Hampshire, IL 60140 

Request:  

Precise Implementation Plan (PIP) 

Brewery, Tap-Room, Gift Shops 

727 Geneva Street 

Tax Key No. ZOP00157 

 

Agenda Item: 10 



2 

 

Ordinance, and any other plan, program, or ordinance adopted, or under consideration pursuant to 

official notice by the City. 

3.  The proposed Precise Implementation Plan (PIP) in its proposed location, and as depicted on the 

required site plan does not result in a substantial or undue adverse impact on nearby property, the 

character of the neighborhood, environmental factors, traffic factors, parking, public 

improvements, public property or rights-of-way, or other matters affecting the public health, 

safety, or general welfare, either as they now exist or as they may in the future be developed as a 

result of the implementation of the provisions of the Zoning Ordinance, the Comprehensive Plan 

or any other plan, program, map, or ordinance adopted or under consideration pursuant to official 

notice by the City or other governmental agency having jurisdiction to guide development. 

4.  The proposed Precise Implementation Plan (PIP) maintains the desired consistency of land uses, 

land use intensities, and land use impacts as related to the environs of the subject property. 

5.  The proposed Precise Implementation Plan (PIP) is located in an area that will be adequately 

served by, and will not impose an undue burden on any improvements, facilities, utilities or 

services provided by public agencies serving the subject property. 

6.  The potential public benefits of the proposed Precise Implementation Plan (PIP) outweigh all 

potential adverse impacts of the proposed conditional use after taking into consideration the 

Applicant’s proposal and any requirements recommended by the Applicant to ameliorate such 

impacts. 

B. If, after the public hearing, the Commission wishes to recommend denial, then the appropriate fact 

finding would be one or more of the following: 

1.  In general, the proposed Precise Implementation Plan (PIP) is not in harmony with the purposes, 

goals, objectives, policies and standards of the City's Comprehensive Plan, Zoning Ordinance, 

and any other plan, program, or ordinance adopted, or under consideration pursuant to official 

notice by the City. 

2.  Specific to this site, the proposed Precise Implementation Plan (PIP) is not in harmony with the 

purposes, goals, objectives, policies and standards of the City's Comprehensive Plan, Zoning 

Ordinance, and any other plan, program, or ordinance adopted, or under consideration pursuant to 

official notice by the City. 

3.  The proposed Precise Implementation Plan (PIP) in its proposed location, and as depicted on the 

required site plan does result in a substantial or undue adverse impact on nearby property, the 

character of the neighborhood, environmental factors, traffic factors, parking, public 

improvements, public property or rights-of-way, or other matters affecting the public health, 

safety, or general welfare, either as they now exist or as they may in the future be developed as a 

result of the implementation of the provisions of the Zoning Ordinance, the Comprehensive Plan 

or any other plan, program, map, or ordinance adopted or under consideration pursuant to official 

notice by the City or other governmental agency having jurisdiction to guide development. 

4.  The proposed Precise Implementation Plan (PIP) does not maintain the desired consistency of 

land uses, land use intensities, and land use impacts as related to the environs of the subject 

property. 

5.  The proposed Precise Implementation Plan (PIP) is not located in an area that will be adequately 

served by, and will impose an undue burden on any of the improvements, facilities, utilities or 

services provided by public agencies serving the subject property. 



3 

 

6.  The potential public benefits of the proposed Precise Implementation Plan (PIP) do not outweigh 

all potential adverse impacts of the proposed conditional use after taking into consideration the 

Applicant’s proposal and any requirements recommended by the Applicant to ameliorate such 

impacts. 

 

 

Staff Recommendation on the Proposed Precise Implementation Plan (PIP): 

If the Plan Commission members feel the submittal is acceptable - 

1. Staff recommends that the Plan Commission recommend approval of the proposed Precise 

Implementation Plan (PIP) as submitted, with the findings under A.1-6., above. 

2. Staff recommends the Plan Commission adopt the affirmative set of findings provided above. 



 
Kapur & Associates, Inc. ~ 1224 S. Pine Street ~ Burlington, WI 53105 ~ www.kapurengineers.com                                 Page 1 of 2 
 
D:\Walworth_Co\Lake Geneva_City\Gov\180132 2018 Lake Geneva Plan Review\PHSE13 727 Geneva Street\727 Geneva 
Engineering 2-11-2019.doc 

 

                               Memo to the City of Lake Geneva 
 

  Phone:  (262) 767-2747 
 Fax:  (262) 767-2750 
 
 
To: Fred Walling, Zoning Administrator Date: February 11, 2019 
 
CC: Josh Gajewski – Utility Director 
 Dave Nord – City Administrator 
 Tom Earle – Director of Public Works  

   
From: Greg Governatori  
   
Subject: Review of PIP Plan Submittal for 727 Geneva Street for a Brewery, Tap 

Room and Giftshops  
    
  

 

We have completed our review of the plans, and additional supporting documents prepared 
by McCormack & Etten Architects, LLP. for the subject project. The review was conducted to 
determine compliance with the City of Lake Geneva Municipal Code and good engineering 
practices. 
 
The applicant is submitting a request for a Precise Implementation Plan (PIP) that would allow for 
the development of a Brewery, Tap-Room, & Gift Shops to be located at 727 Geneva Street. 
 
The following information was submitted for review. 

 Updated application dated February 7th, 2019 
 Site Grading Plans, floors and elevations dated February 4th, 2019 

 
Comments: 

 The applicant has worked extensively with the City and Utility District to provide 
additional details into their brewing process as well as the anticipate waste byproduct 
and management of the effluent.  The applicant has provided detailed information into 
the anticipated volume of production, the proposed filtration system and the tank 
cleaning products.  It is recommended that the attached information be included in the 
PIP approval in the event production increase or changes occur. 

 If not already required, It is also recommended that the Applicant keep a log or manifest 
of both the production volume and volume of waste material to be disposed. 
 

We recommend approval of the PIP submittal subject to the above conditions. 

Although the material has been reviewed, the Applicant and their consultants are ultimately 
responsible for the thoroughness and accuracy of the site plans for conformance with state 
statutes, standards and The Lake Geneva municipal city code. 



Kapur & Associates, Inc. ~ 1124 S. Pine Street ~ Burlington, WI 53105 ~ Phone 262.767.2747 ~ Fax 262.767.2750     Page 2 of 2 
www.kapurengineers.com 
 
D:\Walworth_Co\Lake Geneva_City\Gov\180132 2018 Lake Geneva Plan Review\PHSE13 727 Geneva Street\727 Geneva 
Engineering 2-11-2019.doc 

 

Please contact me if you have any questions or comments pertaining to this project at (262) 
758-6010 or ggovernatori@kapurinc.com 





1

Gregory L. Governatori

Subject: FW: Submittal for Brewery at 727 Geneva Street

Hi Josh, 
 
I will try to show a framework of how any excess grains will be handle.  
Also attached filter spec sheet for your review. 
 
Our Brewery has a 3 bbl system. 
3 bbl system = (93 gallons) Smallest Commercial system brewing. 
Planning on brewing two 3 bbl batches per week. 
Each batch 93 gallons x 2 = 186 gallons per week of beer. 
Dry Grist (Milled Barley and/or oats, wheat) to be used equates 275 lbs. per batch of two 
batches which equates to 550lbs of grist per week. 
Spent grain weight is Approx. 300lbs (with moisture content) per batch of two batches per week 
which equates to 600lbs of spent grist per week to be removed for either high grade animal 
feed, fertilizer or disposal.  
Farmers often collect grist from brewers as its usually free to them and is a high value food source 
for cows, pigs and chickens. 
 
Ingredients input to mashtun: 
275 lbs. Dry Grist Loaded into Mashtun + 116 gallons of water 
Ingredients out from mashtun: 
200 lbs. Spent Grist removed with 25-30% remaining absorbed water in grist. 
Removed spent grist weight = 300lbs. Approx. for high quality animal feed, fertilizer or disposal. 
75lbs. Starches converted to fermentable and non-fermentable sugars to create the beer 
alcohol, flavor, color, body and head retention. 
Process of removal is: 
Manway door is opened and spent grist is raked out into collection bucket and dumped into 
20 gallon totes for removal to farm or landfill. 
 
Inline strainer/ filter 
Remain small bits of grist in removed by hosing down the mashtun with using an inline strainer 
basket on the end of the mashtun outlet to trap grist particulate and allow city water to pass 
through to drain. Strainer basket particulate is then emptied into the 20 gallon tote. 
Typically strainer basket traps around 1lbs of grist bits or less depending on how well the 
operator cleaned the mashtun while raking out the bulk of the spent grist into the collection 
bucket to be dumped into the tote.  
The cleaner the initial bulk cleaning the less weight of particulate trapped in the inline strainer 
basket. 
 
Please let me know if this was helpful. 
 
Thanks, 
Dan 
 

Dan Schuld  
 
 



TIME ACTION

TEMPERATURE CHEMICAL

10 MIN TANK BRUSH
PUMP RECIRC

GROUND TEMP. STAR SAN
SANITIZER

CIP WHEEL

Tank is first scrubbed by hand with Tank Brush.
Rinsed down with city water, inline strainer basket
collects any particulate- dumped to grist tote.
Ten (10) gallons of city water added to tank, Two (2)
ounces of Star San Sanitizer is added to the city
water in tank. Pump and hoses are attached to tank 
and recirculation of the sanitizing solution is ran for 
ten (10) minutes. 
Solution is collected and awaits use for next tank. 
Solution is used until pH is rendered useless, pH3>
Solution is ran to drain. 

For Kettle & Fermenters































































































 1 

STAFF REPORT 

To Lake Geneva Plan Commission 

Meeting Date:  February 18, 2019 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Description: 

The applicant is submitting a proposal for a Conditional Use Permit (CUP) for a new residence. The 

project would begin with a complete removal of the existing residence. The applicants have carefully 

designed the proposed residence to increase building side yard setbacks, and have identified the building 

footprint area and impervious surface area coverage. 

 

The proposed roof design will meet the maximum 35-foot height limit, as measured from the lowest 

exposed building perimeter to the vertical mid-point of the highest pitched roof surface. 

 

Project Details from CUP Submittal 

The proposed project submittal meets or exceeds all requirements of the Zoning Ordinance. 

 

Existing and Proposed Site Plans: Framing Design Concepts Project (dated 01/15/2019 respectively) 

The Site Plans for the existing and proposed homes demonstrate that the proposed home complies with 

all required setbacks. 

The proposed home provides the following setback measurements compared to the proposed home: 

 

Required in SR-4 Existing Home  Proposed Home 

Min Street Yard Setback 25 feet   30 approx. feet to garage 35 feet to garage 

North Side Yard Setback 15’ total combined 7 feet to home   7 feet to home 

South Side Yard Setback Min. 6 feet to home 8+ feet to home  8 feet to home 

East Side Yard Setback         57 feet to home 

Elevation Plan: Sheet: 

The lower elevation provided on the conceptual renditions depict the proposed building’s tallest height. 

The Zoning Ordinance measures building height from the lowest exposed grade to the mid-point height 

of the tallest roof plane. This elevation depicts a maximum height of 26.0 feet, which complies with the 

height limit for both the ER-1 and the SR-4 zoning districts. 

Applicant: 

Tom & Barb Koenig 

5802 Arlington Dr. 

Palatine, IL 60067 

Agenda Item: 11 

Request: 

715 LaGrange Drive 

Conditional Use Permit 

SR-4 Setbacks in ER-1 Zoning District 

Tax Key No. ZLE00016 

 



 2 

Action by the Plan Commission: 

Recommendation to the Common Council on the proposed Conditional Use Permit (CUP): 

As part of the consideration of the requested CUP, the Plan Commission is required to: 

 Provide the Common Council with a recommendation regarding the proposed CUP; 

 Include findings required by the Zoning Ordinance for CUPs; and, 

 Provide specific suggested requirements to modify the project as submitted. 

 

Staff Review Comments: 

The proposed conditional use includes modest increases in the setbacks provided on all four sides of the 

proposed home. 

Required Plan Commission Findings on the CUP for Recommendation to the Common Council: 

A proposed CUP must be reviewed by the standards, below: 

A. If, after the public hearing, the Commission wishes to recommend approval, then the appropriate 

fact finding would be all of the following: 

a. In general, the proposed conditional use is in harmony with the purposes, goals, objectives, 

policies and standards of the City's Comprehensive Plan, Zoning Ordinance, and any other plan, 

program, or ordinance adopted, or under consideration pursuant to official notice by the City. 

b. Specific to this site, the proposed conditional use is in harmony with the purposes, goals, 

objectives, policies and standards of the City's Comprehensive Plan, Zoning Ordinance, and any 

other plan, program, or ordinance adopted, or under consideration pursuant to official notice by 

the City. 

c. The proposed conditional use in its proposed location, and as depicted on the required site plan 

does not result in a substantial or undue adverse impact on nearby property, the character of the 

neighborhood, environmental factors, traffic factors, parking, public improvements, public 

property or rights-of-way, or other matters affecting the public health, safety, or general welfare, 

either as they now exist or as they may in the future be developed as a result of the 

implementation of the provisions of the Zoning Ordinance, the Comprehensive Plan or any 

other plan, program, map, or ordinance adopted or under consideration pursuant to official 

notice by the City or other governmental agency having jurisdiction to guide development. 

d. The proposed conditional use maintains the desired consistency of land uses, land use 

intensities, and land use impacts as related to the environs of the subject property. 

e. The proposed conditional use is located in an area that will be adequately served by, and will 

not impose an undue burden on any improvements, facilities, utilities or services provided by 

public agencies serving the subject property. 

f. The potential public benefits of the proposed conditional use outweigh all potential adverse 

impacts of the proposed conditional use after taking into consideration the Applicant’s proposal 

and any requirements recommended by the Applicant to ameliorate such impacts. 

B. If, after the public hearing, the Commission wishes to recommend denial, then the appropriate fact 

finding would be one or more of the following: 

a. In general, the proposed conditional use is not in harmony with the purposes, goals, objectives, 

policies and standards of the City's Comprehensive Plan, Zoning Ordinance, and any other plan, 

program, or ordinance adopted, or under consideration pursuant to official notice by the City. 



 3 

b. Specific to this site, the proposed conditional use is not in harmony with the purposes, goals, 

objectives, policies and standards of the City's Comprehensive Plan, Zoning Ordinance, and any 

other plan, program, or ordinance adopted, or under consideration pursuant to official notice by 

the City. 

c. The proposed conditional use in its proposed location, and as depicted on the required site plan 

does result in a substantial or undue adverse impact on nearby property, the character of the 

neighborhood, environmental factors, traffic factors, parking, public improvements, public 

property or rights-of-way, or other matters affecting the public health, safety, or general welfare, 

either as they now exist or as they may in the future be developed as a result of the 

implementation of the provisions of the Zoning Ordinance, the Comprehensive Plan or any 

other plan, program, map, or ordinance adopted or under consideration pursuant to official 

notice by the City or other governmental agency having jurisdiction to guide development. 

d. The proposed conditional use does not maintain the desired consistency of land uses, land use 

intensities, and land use impacts as related to the environs of the subject property. 

e. The proposed conditional use is not located in an area that will be adequately served by, and 

will impose an undue burden on any of the improvements, facilities, utilities or services 

provided by public agencies serving the subject property. 

f. The potential public benefits of the proposed conditional use do not outweigh all potential 

adverse impacts of the proposed conditional use after taking into consideration the Applicant’s 

proposal and any requirements recommended by the Applicant to ameliorate such impacts. 

 

Staff Recommendation on the proposed Conditional Use Permit: 

1. Staff recommends that the Plan Commission recommend approval of the proposed conditional 

use as submitted, with the findings under A.1-6., above. 

2. Staff recommends the Plan Commission adopt the affirmative set of findings provided above, 

noting that the proposal is a fully consistent with the setback requirements of the SR-4 zoning 

district, and results in compliance to the setbacks on all four sides of the building over the current 

home. 

 



 
Kapur & Associates, Inc. ~ 1224 S. Pine Street ~ Burlington, WI 53105 ~ www.kapurengineers.com                                 Page 1 of 1 
 
D:\Walworth_Co\Lake Geneva_City\Gov\190138 2019 Lake Geneva Plan Review\PHSE03 715 Lagrange Drive\715 Lagrange 
Engineering Report 2-11-2019.doc 

 

                               Memo to the City of Lake Geneva 
 

  Phone:  (262) 767-2747 
 Fax:  (262) 767-2750 
 
 
To: Fred Walling, Zoning Administrator Date: February 11, 2019 
 
CC: Dave Nord – City Administrator 
 Tom Earle – Director of Public Works 
 Josh Gajewski – Utility Director 
    
From: Greg Governatori, P.E 
   
Subject: Engineering review of 715 LaGrange Drive - CUP 
  
  

 

We have completed our review of the construction plans and additional supporting documents 
submitted by Tom and Barb Koenig owners of the property received January 29th, 2019. The review 
was conducted to determine compliance with the City of Lake Geneva Municipal Code and good 
engineering practices. 
 
The Following items were submitted as part of the application 

 Plat of Survey, grading and erosion control –dated January 15th, 2019 
 CUP Application and narrative dated January 29th, 2019. 

 
 The project consists of the demolition of the existing residence and replacing with a new 

proposed house very close to the same footprint and location. 

Utility Connections 

 The sanitary sewer services will connect to the existing manhole within the sanitary easement to 
the southwest.  The existing manhole is estimated at being six feet in depth from records.  The 
manhole depth should be confirmed and compared to the basement floor elevation of the house 
to provide adequate sewer service to the home. 

  A new water service will be provided to the lateral connection on South Lake Shore drive.  A new 
meter is required, with the existing outside meter pit being abandoned for construction of the new 
home. 

Grading and Storm water 

 The lot is shown as properly graded with erosion control around the perimeter of the property.  
Existing drainage patterns are maintained, and storm water runoff will not be affected by the 
replacement home construction.  

Although the material has been reviewed, the Applicant and their consultants are ultimately responsible 
for the thoroughness and accuracy of the site plans for conformance with state statutes, standards and 
The Lake Geneva municipal city code.  Please contact me if you have any questions or comments 
pertaining to this project at (262) 758-6010 or ggovernatori@kapurinc.com 





































1 

 

STAFF REPORT 

To Lake Geneva Plan Commission 

Meeting Date: February 18, 2019 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Description: 

The applicant is submitting a request for a Precise Implementation Plan (PIP) that would allow for the 

development of Phase II for the north side of the development to include the 4 single family structures 

and road installation with a cul-de-sac. 

 

Action by the Plan Commission: 

Recommendation to the Common Council on the proposed Precise Implementation Plan (PIP): 

As part of the consideration of the requested PIP, the Plan Commission is required to: 

 Provide the Common Council with a recommendation regarding the proposed PIP; 

 Include findings required by the Zoning Ordinance for PIPs; and, 

 Provide specific suggested requirements to modify the project as submitted. 

 

Staff Review Comments: 

No impacts to neighboring properties are anticipated. 

 

Required Plan Commission Findings on the PIP for Recommendation to the Common Council: 

A proposed PIP must be reviewed by the standards, below: 

A. If, after the public hearing, the Commission wishes to recommend approval, then the appropriate 

fact finding would be all of the following: 

1.  In general, the proposed Precise Implementation Plan (PIP) is in harmony with the purposes, 

goals, objectives, policies and standards of the City's Comprehensive Plan, Zoning Ordinance, 

and any other plan, program, or ordinance adopted, or under consideration pursuant to official 

notice by the City. 

2.  Specific to this site, the proposed Precise Implementation Plan (PIP) is in harmony with the 

purposes, goals, objectives, policies and standards of the City's Comprehensive Plan, Zoning 

Applicant: 

McMurr II, LLC. 

351 Hubbard, Suite 610,  

Chicago, IL. 60654 

Request:  

Precise Implementation Plan (PIP) 

Summerhaven Phase II 

Lake Geneva Blvd. 

Tax Key Nos. ZSUM00001 thru ZSUM0000247 

Agenda Item: 12 



2 

 

Ordinance, and any other plan, program, or ordinance adopted, or under consideration pursuant to 

official notice by the City. 

3.  The proposed Precise Implementation Plan (PIP) in its proposed location, and as depicted on the 

required site plan does not result in a substantial or undue adverse impact on nearby property, the 

character of the neighborhood, environmental factors, traffic factors, parking, public 

improvements, public property or rights-of-way, or other matters affecting the public health, 

safety, or general welfare, either as they now exist or as they may in the future be developed as a 

result of the implementation of the provisions of the Zoning Ordinance, the Comprehensive Plan 

or any other plan, program, map, or ordinance adopted or under consideration pursuant to official 

notice by the City or other governmental agency having jurisdiction to guide development. 

4.  The proposed Precise Implementation Plan (PIP) maintains the desired consistency of land uses, 

land use intensities, and land use impacts as related to the environs of the subject property. 

5.  The proposed Precise Implementation Plan (PIP) is located in an area that will be adequately 

served by, and will not impose an undue burden on any improvements, facilities, utilities or 

services provided by public agencies serving the subject property. 

6.  The potential public benefits of the proposed Precise Implementation Plan (PIP) outweigh all 

potential adverse impacts of the proposed conditional use after taking into consideration the 

Applicant’s proposal and any requirements recommended by the Applicant to ameliorate such 

impacts. 

B. If, after the public hearing, the Commission wishes to recommend denial, then the appropriate fact 

finding would be one or more of the following: 

1.  In general, the proposed Precise Implementation Plan (PIP) is not in harmony with the purposes, 

goals, objectives, policies and standards of the City's Comprehensive Plan, Zoning Ordinance, 

and any other plan, program, or ordinance adopted, or under consideration pursuant to official 

notice by the City. 

2.  Specific to this site, the proposed Precise Implementation Plan (PIP) is not in harmony with the 

purposes, goals, objectives, policies and standards of the City's Comprehensive Plan, Zoning 

Ordinance, and any other plan, program, or ordinance adopted, or under consideration pursuant to 

official notice by the City. 

3.  The proposed Precise Implementation Plan (PIP) in its proposed location, and as depicted on the 

required site plan does result in a substantial or undue adverse impact on nearby property, the 

character of the neighborhood, environmental factors, traffic factors, parking, public 

improvements, public property or rights-of-way, or other matters affecting the public health, 

safety, or general welfare, either as they now exist or as they may in the future be developed as a 

result of the implementation of the provisions of the Zoning Ordinance, the Comprehensive Plan 

or any other plan, program, map, or ordinance adopted or under consideration pursuant to official 

notice by the City or other governmental agency having jurisdiction to guide development. 

4.  The proposed Precise Implementation Plan (PIP) does not maintain the desired consistency of 

land uses, land use intensities, and land use impacts as related to the environs of the subject 

property. 

5.  The proposed Precise Implementation Plan (PIP) is not located in an area that will be adequately 

served by, and will impose an undue burden on any of the improvements, facilities, utilities or 

services provided by public agencies serving the subject property. 



3 

 

6.  The potential public benefits of the proposed Precise Implementation Plan (PIP) do not outweigh 

all potential adverse impacts of the proposed conditional use after taking into consideration the 

Applicant’s proposal and any requirements recommended by the Applicant to ameliorate such 

impacts. 

 

Staff Recommendation on the Proposed Precise Implementation Plan (PIP): 

If the Plan Commission members feel the submittal is acceptable - 

1. Staff recommends that the Plan Commission recommend approval of the proposed Precise 

Implementation Plan (PIP) as submitted, with the findings under A.1-6., above. 

2. Staff recommends the Plan Commission adopt the affirmative set of findings provided above. 

 



T:\M\McMurr, LLC\Summerhaven\2018 phase 2\off copy\PD-P 2 & 3\off copy\pd-pip app-2.docx Page 1 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 

SUMMERHAVEN 
OF  

LAKE GENEVA PHASE II 
 

PLANNED DEVELOPMENT –  
PRECISE IMPLEMENTATION PLAN  

Applicant: McMurr II, LLC, 
an Illinois limited liability company 

 
January 11, 2019 

  



T:\M\McMurr, LLC\Summerhaven\2018 phase 2\off copy\PD-P 2 & 3\off copy\pd-pip app-2.docx Page 2 
 

SUMMERHAVEN – PHASE II  
PRECISE IMPLEMENTATION PLAN 

NARRATIVE 
 
 
PRECISE IMPLEMENTATION PLAN INTRODUCTION: 
 
  McMurr II, LLC, an Illinois limited liability company (“McMurr II”), is the 
Successor Declarant of the Summerhaven development (“Summerhaven”), and the owner of all 
the lands composing the second phase of Summerhaven, more particularly described in the 
attached Exhibit A incorporated herein (sometimes, “Phase II,” or “Site”).  McMurr II has 
cleared Summerhaven of piles of broken asphalt, restored the capacity of the storm water 
management ponds, altered the storm water drainage to prevent the flooding of neighboring 
property, paved a portion of Summerhaven Drive to Lake Geneva Boulevard for emergency 
vehicles, and sold most of its units in Phase I of Summerhaven, approximately 8.04 acres 
(“Phase I”), resulting in considerable new single-family home construction.  
 
  Phase I is zoned by the City of Lake Geneva (“City”) as PD, Planned 
Development Zoning District, under a Precise Implementation Plan that has been amended in 
2014, 2017, and 2018 by McMurr II.  Phase I is under condominium ownership, subject to the 
Declaration of Condominium and the Plat of Condominium of Summerhaven of Lake Geneva 
Condominium, as amended by recorded amendments and addenda thereto (collectively, 
“Summerhaven of Lake Geneva Condominium”).  Under the 2017 amendment to the PD for 
Phase I, McMurr II has committed to install and repair the incomplete public and private 
infrastructure for the balance of Phase I, construct the pool promised by the original developer of 
Summerhaven, as well as a pool house, and install the final lift of asphalt for the Phase I private 
roads. 
 
  The public infrastructure (e.g., municipal water and sanitary sewer mains) and the 
private infrastructure (e.g., storm water management system, private streets, and public utilities) 
for Summerhaven have been designed and almost fully installed with sufficient capacity to 
accommodate not only the 37 units originally approved for Phase I, now reduced to 28 units, but 
also to accommodate an additional 47 units originally approved for Phase II and Phase III of 
Summerhaven, approximately 4.97 acres adjacent to the south boundary of Phase I (“Phase III”), 
now reduced to 27 single-family units.    
 
  As of late 2018, the City, at McMurr II’s request, has rezoned Phase II and Phase 
III to PD, Planned Development Zoning District, under a General Development Plan, using the 
TR-6, Two-family Zoning District, as the base district.      
 
  To restore the original vision for Summerhaven, to broaden the base of financial 
support for Summerhaven’s extensive private infrastructure, including, without limitation, the 
streets, the storm water management facilities, the pool and the pool house, and to provide 
quality infill development, McMurr II proposes this PD, Planned Development Zoning District, 
Precise Implementation Plan, for Phase II (“PIP”).   



T:\M\McMurr, LLC\Summerhaven\2018 phase 2\off copy\PD-P 2 & 3\off copy\pd-pip app-2.docx Page 3 
 

  The ten year period during which Phase II and Phase III could be added to the 
Summerhaven of Lake Geneva Condominium as expansion units under the Wisconsin 
Condominium Ownership Act has expired. 
 
  Phase II will be under condominium ownership, pursuant to a Declaration of 
Condominium and Plat of Condominium of Summerhaven of Lake Geneva II, consisting of four 
single-family site condominium units in Phase II, with Phase III designated as Expansion Area 
for up to 23 additional single-family site condominium units (“Condominium of Summerhaven 
of Lake Geneva II”).  Concurrently herewith, McMurr II is filing with the City an Application 
for Land Division Review for such Declaration and Plat of Condominium.  
 
    McMurr II proposes a cross-easement agreement between the condominium 
associations of the Condominium of Summerhaven of Lake Geneva and the Condominium of 
Summerhaven of Lake Geneva II, to share, maintain, repair and replace the private roads, the 
storm water management facilities, the pool and pool house, and other common amenities and 
private infrastructure used by all.   
 
  The properties surrounding Phase II are zoned PB, Planned Business Zoning 
District, to the north and east, principally along Wells Street; MR-8, Multi-family Residential-8 
Zoning District, to the west, and PD-PIP (Summerhaven Phase I) and SR-4, Single-family 
Residential-4 Zoning District, to the south.  The single-family use and the proposed density 
should fit well within the neighboring properties.  
 
  A Precise Implementation Plan for Phase III and an addendum to condominium 
plat and an amendment to condominium declaration adding Phase III to the Condominium of 
Summerhaven of Lake Geneva II will be filed upon the completion of engineering and related 
work.   
    
PRECISE IMPLEMENTATION PLAN REQUIREMENTS: 
 
1. Location Map:  See the Location Map, showing the location of Phase II on the City’s Land 
Use Plan Map, attached as Exhibit B and incorporated herein. 
 
2. Map of Site with Zoning and Names and Addresses of Owners within 300 feet of the Site:  
See Group Exhibit C incorporated herein. 
 
3. General written description of the proposed PIP: 
a. Specific project themes and images:  A Site Plan of Phase II and Phase III is attached as 
Exhibit D and incorporated herein.  Sample elevations and floor plans for one-story residences 
for Phase II are attached as Group Exhibit E and incorporated herein.  Two-story residences are 
planned, as well, for Phase II.  The Final Engineering Plans for the Phase I Buildout and Phase 
II are attached as Group Exhibit F and incorporated herein.  The landscaping, signage, lighting, 
organizational structure, and consistency of the GDP and the PIP for Phase II will be 
substantially similar to those of Phase I, to make an integrated community. 
b. Specific mix of dwelling unit types and/or land uses:  Only single-family residences are 
proposed for Phase II. 



T:\M\McMurr, LLC\Summerhaven\2018 phase 2\off copy\PD-P 2 & 3\off copy\pd-pip app-2.docx Page 4 
 

c. Specific residential densities: (i) Dwelling units per gross acre: Phase II, less than 2.3 
units/acre; (ii) floor area ratio: 25%; (iii) impervious surface area ratio: 40%. 
d. Specific treatment of natural features:  Phase II includes a detention pond that will serve 
not only Phase II improvements, but the Phase I improvements, as well.  Open space in Phase II 
will be treated much as open space is treated in Phase I. 
e. Specific relationship to nearby properties and public streets:  Access to Phase II will be 
through the existing Summerhaven Drive from Lake Geneva Boulevard and an extended Murray 
Drive.  The single-family residences of Phase II will relate well to the Phase I development. 
f. Statement of Rationale - why PD zoning proposed:  McMurr II requests PD zoning to 
obtain flexibilities from land use and bulk regulations for Phase II, the most significant of which 
have been granted in Phase I, to promote uniformity of development with Phase I, and to 
accommodate the number of single-family units sufficient to support the private infrastructure of 
Summerhaven, which has been planned for more multi-family units under the original PD.  
Despite the flexibilities sought under the requested PD zoning, permitted density in the Site’s 
existing zoning of Two-Family Residential District (TR-6) is up to six dwelling units per acre, 
while Phase II is less than 2.3 dwelling units per acre. 
g. Complete list of zoning standards not met by proposed PD and location(s) in which they 
apply, and complete list of zoning standards more than met by the proposed PD and 
location(s) in which they apply:  
 McMurr II reiterates the following flexibilities from bulk regulations for Phase II, 
which have been granted under the approved General Development Plan for Phase II and 
Phase III: 
 i. Easements for the private streets of 50 feet in width (Ordinance: minimum 66-  
  foot width); 
 ii. Cul-de-sac length of 720 feet (Ordinance maximum: 400 feet);  
 iii. Minimum front and rear eave width of six inches for side of gables (Ordinance:  
  eighteen inches); 
 iv. Side of front porch to side of adjacent front porch of twelve feet, minimum side  
  yard of six feet (Ordinance: minimum dwelling unit separation of fifteen feet,  
  minimum side yard of six feet); 
 v. Units in Phase II will range in size from approximately 5,046 square feet to  
  approximately 8,182 square feet, to accommodate single-family dwellings in  
  place of the duplex structures permitted under the TR-6, Two-family Zoning  
  District.  By comparison, some units in Phase I are below 7,000 square feet  
  in size. (Ordinance: 9,000 square foot minimum); 
 vi. Minimum Landscape Surface Ratio (LSR): 45% (Ordinance: 50%); 
 vii. Maximum Building Coverage: 45% (Ordinance: 40%); 
 viii. Minimum Lot Width: 50 feet (Ordinance: 75 feet); 
 ix. Total of Both Sides, Lot Lines to House/Garage: Twelve feet (Ordinance: fifteen  
  feet; and 
 x. Rear Lot Line to House or Garage: fifteen feet (Ordinance: 30 feet). 
 
 Phase II will meet the following bulk regulations: 
   Residential Density and Intensity Requirements: Conventional Development 
 xi. Minimum Zoning District Area: 9,000 square feet - Units in Phase II will   
  range in size from approximately 5,046 square feet to about 8,182 square   



T:\M\McMurr, LLC\Summerhaven\2018 phase 2\off copy\PD-P 2 & 3\off copy\pd-pip app-2.docx Page 5 
 

  feet, to accommodate single-family dwellings in place of the duplex   
  structures permitted under the TR-6, Two-family Zoning District.  By   
  comparison, some units in Phase I are below 7,000 square feet in size. 
 xii. Maximum Gross Density (MGD): Six du/acre - Phase II totals fewer than   
  2.3 dwelling units per acre. 
 xiii. Maximum Accessory Building Coverage: 10% 
 xiv. Residential Bulk Requirements: 
   1.  Minimum Street Frontage: 50 feet 
   2.  Minimum Setbacks:  
    Front or Street Lot Line to House: 25 feet 
    Front or Street Lot Line to Garage: 25 feet  
    Side Lot Line to House or Garage: six feet  
    Side Lot Line to Accessory Structure: three feet from property line  
    Rear Lot Line to Accessory Structure: three feet from property line  
    Minimum Paved Surface Setback: five feet from side or rear; ten  
    feet from street 
    Minimum Dwelling Unit Separation: twelve feet   
    Maximum Height of Dwelling Unit: 35 feet 
    Maximum Height of Accessory Structure: fifteen feet 
    Minimum Number of Off-Street Parking Spaces Required on the  
    Lot (Includes garage, drives, and all designated parking surfaces):  
    three 
    Minimum Dwelling Core Dimensions: 24 feet by 40 feet 
    Minimum Roof Pitch: 3 : 12 
   3.  Residential Landscaping Requirements: Not applicable for single- 
        family. 
 
4. Precise Implementation Plan Drawing showing at least the following information: 
a. PIP Site Plan conforming to §98-908(3).  See attached Exhibit G incorporated herein and 
McMurr II’s proposed Declaration and Plat of Condominium submitted concurrently herewith.    
b. Location of public recreational and open space areas and facilities.  None.  All amenities, 
including the pool and pool house in Phase I, are intended for the use of Summerhaven residents 
and their guests.   
c. Statistical data on minimum lot sizes in the development, the precise areas of all development 
lots and pads, density/intensity of various parts of the development, floor area ratio, impervious 
surface area ratio and landscape surface area ratio of various land uses, expected staging, and any 
other plans required by the City.  See 3(g), above. 
d. Notations relating (3)(a)3.a.-f., above to specific area.  See Exhibit G. 
 
5. Landscaping Plan, noting approximate locations of foundation, street, yard and paving, 
landscaping, and compliance with landscaping requirements, and the use of extra landscaping 
and bufferyards.  There are no residential landscaping requirements for single-family residences 
in the base district TR-6, Two-family Zoning District.  Each owner in Phase II will landscape his 
or her yard as he or she sees fit. 
 
6.  Building Elevations of exteriors of all buildings:  See Group Exhibit E. 



T:\M\McMurr, LLC\Summerhaven\2018 phase 2\off copy\PD-P 2 & 3\off copy\pd-pip app-2.docx Page 6 
 

 
7. General Signage Plan, including all project identification signs and concepts for public 
fixtures and signs (such as street light fixtures and/or poles or street sign faces and/or poles) 
which vary from City standards or common practices.  Signage and light fixtures and poles for 
Phase II shall be substantially similar in appearance and location to the signage and light 
fixtures and poles for Phase I, to preserve continuity with Phase I.  Only directional and street 
signage is planned for Phase II; no project identification signage is needed. 
 
8. General Outline of Intended Organizational Structure:  Phase II will be under 
condominium ownership, pursuant to the Declaration of Condominium and Plat of 
Condominium of Summerhaven of Lake Geneva II, consisting of four single-family site 
condominium units in Phase II, with Phase III designated as Expansion Area for up to 23 
additional single-family site condominium units.  
 
    McMurr II proposes a cross-easement agreement between the condominium 
associations of the Condominium of Summerhaven of Lake Geneva and the Condominium of 
Summerhaven of Lake Geneva II, to share, maintain, repair and replace the private roads, the 
storm water management facilities, the pool and pool house, and other common amenities and 
private infrastructure used by all.   
 
9.  Consistency of Proposed PIP with Approved GDP: The proposed PIP for Phase II is 
fully consistent with the approved GDP for Phase II and Phase III, and with the approved PIP for 
Phase I, using the same flexibilities from bulk and other zoning standards in all phases and 
implementing varied but complementary design themes, to create a phased, seamless, 
predominantly single-family development throughout Summerhaven.  
 
10.  All Variations between Requirements of GPD and PIP:  None. 
 
11.  Proof of Financing Capability:  McMurr II will enter into a development agreement with 
the City for the Phase II improvements and submit a performance bond thereunder in the amount 
of 120% of the value of the public improvements, as determined by the City Engineer and 
McMurr II.  
 
 McMurr II respectfully requests that the City grant the PIP pursuant to this Application, 
to complete this infill development in the City, subject to such reasonable conditions as the City 
may impose.     
  



T:\M\McMurr, LLC\Summerhaven\2018 phase 2\off copy\PD-P 2 & 3\off copy\pd-pip app-2.docx Page 7 
 

EXHIBIT A 
SUMMERHAVEN – PHASE II  

PRECISE IMPLEMENTATION PLAN 

LEGAL DESCRIPTION OF PHASE II 

 

PARCEL 1: THAT PART OF THE SOUTHEAST 1/4 OF THE SOUTHEAST 1/4 OF 
SECTION 36, TOWN 2 NORTH, RANGE 17 EAST, CITY OF LAKE GENEVA, 
WALWORTH COUNTY, WISCONSIN, DESCRIBED AS FOLLOWS: 

COMMENCING AT THE NORTHWEST CORNER OF LOT 1 OF CERTIFIED SURVEY 
MAP NO. 754, RECORDED AS DOCUMENT NO. 28944 OF WALWORTH COUNTY 
CERTIFIED SURVEYS, SAID POINT LOCATED S 89DEG 31MIN 36SEC W, 733.28 FEET 
FROM THE SOUTHEAST CORNER OF SAID SECTION 36 (T2N, R17E); THENCE N 
89DEG 38MIN 40SEC E, 89.98 FEET; THENCE N 89DEG 37MIN 23SEC E, 90.50 FEET TO 
THE WEST LINE OF LAKE GENEVA BOULEVARD; THENCE N 01DEG 34MIN 47SEC 
W, 348.82 FEET ALONG SAID BOULEVARD TO THE SOUTHWEST LINE OF WELLS 
STREET; THENCE N 37DEG 55MIN 32SEC W, ALONG SAID STREET, 202.94 FEET; 
THENCE S 89DEG 18MIN 48SEC W, 239.56 FEET TO THE POINT OF BEGINNING; 
THENCE S 00DEG 41MIN 12SEC E, 50.00 FEET; THENCE S 01DEG 55MIN 11SEC E, 
134.92 FEET; THENCE S 89DEG 31MIN 07SEC W, 24.01 FEET; THENCE S 01DEG 12MIN 
03SEC E, 16.91 FEET; THENCE S 88DEG 41MIN 15SEC W, 42.80 FEET; THENCE N 
86DEG 27MIN 48SEC W, 126.62 FEET; THENCE S 88DEG 58MIN 07SEC W, 199.39 FEET 
TO THE EAST LINE OF LAKE SHORE VILLAGE CONDOMINIUM; THENCE ALONG 
SAID CONDOMINIUM, N 00DEG 11MIN 05SEC W, 6.62 FEET; THENCE CONTINUE, N 
00DEG 47MIN 32SEC W, 187.44 FEET; THENCE N 89DEG 18MIN 48SEC E, 389.70 FEET 
TO THE POINT OF BEGINNING.  CONTAINING 76,247 SQUARE FEET (1.75 ACRES) OF 
LAND, MORE OR LESS (end of legal description). 

Property Index Number: ZSUM 00001 

  



T:\M\McMurr, LLC\Summerhaven\2018 phase 2\off copy\PD-P 2 & 3\off copy\pd-pip app-2.docx Page 8 
 

EXHIBIT B 
SUMMERHAVEN – PHASE II  

PRECISE IMPLEMENTATION PLAN 

LOCATION MAP 

 

  See attached. 

  





T:\M\McMurr, LLC\Summerhaven\2018 phase 2\off copy\PD-P 2 & 3\off copy\pd-pip app-2.docx Page 9 
 

GROUP EXHIBIT C 
SUMMERHAVEN – PHASE II  

PRECISE IMPLEMENTATION PLAN 

MAP OF SITE AND LIST OF OWNERS WITHIN 300 FEET 

 

  See attached. 

 
  



300 foot Buffer
WALWORTH COUNTY, WISCONSIN

Gr id  
No rt hGeo de tic

Nort h

Ö

0 50 10 0 15 0 20 0 25 025
Fe e t

Wisconsin State Plane Coordinate System, South Zone
Hor izontal  Datum:  NAD27

Map Produced on:

Walworth County Information Technology Department
Land Information Division
1800 County Tr unk NN
Elk horn, Wisconsin  53121-1001
DISC LAI M ER: T HE I NF OR M AT IO N PR OV IDED  O N T H IS M AP HAS BEEN PRO DU CED 
AND PRO CESS ED F R OM  SO UR CES BEL IEVED  T O BE R ELI ABLE . N O WARR ANT Y,  
EXPRESS ED O R IM PL IED,  IS M ADE R EG ARDI NG  AC CUR ACY,  ADE QU ACY, CO M PLET EN ESS, 
LEG AL IT Y, R EL IABIL IT Y OR  USEF U LN ESS O F  T HI S IN F OR MA TI ON . T H E IN F OR MA TI ON  
CO NT AIN ED H EREI N W IL L N OT  BE AC CEPT ED  AS A N O F F ICI AL DO CUM EN T .

Author:
1 inch = 188 feet

10/17/2018















T:\M\McMurr, LLC\Summerhaven\2018 phase 2\off copy\PD-P 2 & 3\off copy\pd-pip app-2.docx Page 10 
 

EXHIBIT D 
SUMMERHAVEN – PHASE II  

PRECISE IMPLEMENTATION PLAN 

SITE PLAN 

 

  See attached. 

  









T:\M\McMurr, LLC\Summerhaven\2018 phase 2\off copy\PD-P 2 & 3\off copy\pd-pip app-2.docx Page 11 
 

GROUP EXHIBIT E 
SUMMERHAVEN – PHASE II  

PRECISE IMPLEMENTATION PLAN 

SAMPLE ELEVATIONS & FLOOR PLANS 

 

  See attached. 

  











T:\M\McMurr, LLC\Summerhaven\2018 phase 2\off copy\PD-P 2 & 3\off copy\pd-pip app-2.docx Page 12 
 

GROUP EXHIBIT F 
SUMMERHAVEN – PHASE II 

PRECISE IMPLEMENTATION PLAN 

FINAL ENGINEERING PLANS FOR THE PHASE I BUILDOUT AND PHASE II 

  See attached. 

  























T:\M\McMurr, LLC\Summerhaven\2018 phase 2\off copy\PD-P 2 & 3\off copy\pd-pip app-2.docx Page 13 
 

EXHIBIT G 
SUMMERHAVEN – PHASE II 

PRECISE IMPLEMENTATION PLAN 

PRECISE IMPLEMENTATION PLAN DRAWING 

  See attached. 

 

 





1 

 

STAFF REPORT 

To Lake Geneva Plan Commission 

Meeting Date: February 18, 2019 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Description: 

The applicant is submitting a request for a General Development Plan (GDP) that would allow for the 

development of a new Single Family Development to be located at the former Regent Hill subdivision 

on LaSalle Street.  

The applicant is requesting to construct 58 new single family dwellings, with the Planned Development 

request that would allow for the reduction in lot sizes, private Cul-de-Sac’s road ways.  

The property is located in the Multi-Family Residential – 8 (MR-8) zoning district. 

 

Action by the Plan Commission: 

Recommendation to the Common Council on the proposed General Development Plan (GDP): 

As part of the consideration of the requested GDP, the Plan Commission is required to: 

 Provide the Common Council with a recommendation regarding the proposed GDP; 

 Include findings required by the Zoning Ordinance for GDPs; and, 

 Provide specific suggested requirements to modify the project as submitted. 

 

Staff Review Comments: 

No impacts to neighboring properties are anticipated. 

 

Required Plan Commission Findings on the GDP for Recommendation to the Common Council: 

A proposed GDP must be reviewed by the standards, below: 

A. If, after the public hearing, the Commission wishes to recommend approval, then the appropriate 

fact finding would be all of the following: 

1.  In general, the proposed General Development Plan (GDP) is in harmony with the purposes, 

goals, objectives, policies and standards of the City's Comprehensive Plan, Zoning Ordinance, 

Applicant: 

Omega Homes 

201 O’Connor Dr. suite 101 

Elkhorn, WI 53121 

Request: Continuation of the public hearing 

General Development Plan (GDP) 

Vistas of Lake Geneva located on LaSalle St. 

58 Single Family Dwelling Development 

Tax Key No. ZA424700001 

 

Agenda Item: 13 



2 

 

and any other plan, program, or ordinance adopted, or under consideration pursuant to official 

notice by the City. 

2.  Specific to this site, the proposed General Development Plan (GDP) is in harmony with the 

purposes, goals, objectives, policies and standards of the City's Comprehensive Plan, Zoning 

Ordinance, and any other plan, program, or ordinance adopted, or under consideration pursuant to 

official notice by the City. 

3.  The proposed General Development Plan (GDP) in its proposed location, and as depicted on the 

required site plan does not result in a substantial or undue adverse impact on nearby property, the 

character of the neighborhood, environmental factors, traffic factors, parking, public 

improvements, public property or rights-of-way, or other matters affecting the public health, 

safety, or general welfare, either as they now exist or as they may in the future be developed as a 

result of the implementation of the provisions of the Zoning Ordinance, the Comprehensive Plan 

or any other plan, program, map, or ordinance adopted or under consideration pursuant to official 

notice by the City or other governmental agency having jurisdiction to guide development. 

4.  The proposed General Development Plan (GDP) maintains the desired consistency of land uses, 

land use intensities, and land use impacts as related to the environs of the subject property. 

5.  The proposed General Development Plan (GDP) is located in an area that will be adequately 

served by, and will not impose an undue burden on any improvements, facilities, utilities or 

services provided by public agencies serving the subject property. 

6.  The potential public benefits of the proposed General Development Plan (GDP) outweigh all 

potential adverse impacts of the proposed conditional use after taking into consideration the 

Applicant’s proposal and any requirements recommended by the Applicant to ameliorate such 

impacts. 

B. If, after the public hearing, the Commission wishes to recommend denial, then the appropriate fact 

finding would be one or more of the following: 

1.  In general, the proposed General Development Plan (GDP) is not in harmony with the purposes, 

goals, objectives, policies and standards of the City's Comprehensive Plan, Zoning Ordinance, 

and any other plan, program, or ordinance adopted, or under consideration pursuant to official 

notice by the City. 

2.  Specific to this site, the proposed General Development Plan (GDP) is not in harmony with the 

purposes, goals, objectives, policies and standards of the City's Comprehensive Plan, Zoning 

Ordinance, and any other plan, program, or ordinance adopted, or under consideration pursuant to 

official notice by the City. 

3.  The proposed General Development Plan (GDP) in its proposed location, and as depicted on the 

required site plan does result in a substantial or undue adverse impact on nearby property, the 

character of the neighborhood, environmental factors, traffic factors, parking, public 

improvements, public property or rights-of-way, or other matters affecting the public health, 

safety, or general welfare, either as they now exist or as they may in the future be developed as a 

result of the implementation of the provisions of the Zoning Ordinance, the Comprehensive Plan 

or any other plan, program, map, or ordinance adopted or under consideration pursuant to official 

notice by the City or other governmental agency having jurisdiction to guide development. 



3 

 

4.  The proposed General Development Plan (GDP) does not maintain the desired consistency of 

land uses, land use intensities, and land use impacts as related to the environs of the subject 

property. 

5.  The proposed General Development Plan (GDP) is not located in an area that will be adequately 

served by, and will impose an undue burden on any of the improvements, facilities, utilities or 

services provided by public agencies serving the subject property. 

6.  The potential public benefits of the proposed General Development Plan (GDP) do not outweigh 

all potential adverse impacts of the proposed conditional use after taking into consideration the 

Applicant’s proposal and any requirements recommended by the Applicant to ameliorate such 

impacts. 

 

 

Staff Recommendation on the Proposed General Development Plan (GDP): 

1. Staff recommends that the Plan Commission recommend approval of the proposed General 

Development Plan (GDP) as submitted, with the findings under A.1-6., above. 

2. Staff recommends the Plan Commission adopt the affirmative set of findings provided above. 



1 
 

STAFF REPORT 

To Lake Geneva Plan Commission 

Meeting Date: February 18, 2019 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Description: 

The applicant is submitting a request for a Conditional Use Permit (CUP) that would allow for the 

candidate to raze or remove the structure in accordance with the zoning requirements found in Section 

98-913(5)(c) in the Downtown Design Overlay District, the existing building that is located at 832 

Geneva Street.  

The applicant is requesting to construct a new 5600 square foot commercial building at 832 Geneva 

Street which will have retail area & coffee shop, in order to construct this proposed building a 

Conditional Use Permit must be approved to “Raze or Remove” the existing structure 

The property is located in the Central Business (CB) zoning district, onsite parking is not required in the 

Central Business district. 

 

Action by the Plan Commission: 

Recommendation to the Common Council on the proposed Conditional Use Permit (CUP): 

As part of the consideration of the requested CUP, the Plan Commission is required to: 

 Provide the Common Council with a recommendation regarding the proposed CUP; 

 Include findings required by the Zoning Ordinance for CUPs; and, 

 Provide specific suggested requirements to modify the project as submitted. 

 

Staff Review Comments: 

No impacts to neighboring properties are anticipated. 

 

Required Plan Commission Findings on the CUP for Recommendation to the Common Council: 

A proposed CUP must be reviewed by the standards, below: 

A. If, after the public hearing, the Commission wishes to recommend approval, then the appropriate 

fact finding would be all of the following: 

Applicant: 

House Around the Corner 

3389 South Lake Shore Dr. 

Delavan, WI 53115 

Request: Continuation of the public hearing 

Conditional Use Permit (CUP) 

Raze or Remove the Existing Commercial 

Building - 832 Geneva Street 

Tax Key No. ZOP00252 

 

Agenda Item: 14 



2 
 

1.  In general, the proposed Conditional Use Permit (CUP) is in harmony with the purposes, goals, 

objectives, policies and standards of the City's Comprehensive Plan, Zoning Ordinance, and any 

other plan, program, or ordinance adopted, or under consideration pursuant to official notice by 

the City. 

2.  Specific to this site, the proposed Conditional Use Permit (CUP) is in harmony with the purposes, 

goals, objectives, policies and standards of the City's Comprehensive Plan, Zoning Ordinance, 

and any other plan, program, or ordinance adopted, or under consideration pursuant to official 

notice by the City. 

3.  The proposed Conditional Use Permit (CUP) in its proposed location, and as depicted on the 

required site plan does not result in a substantial or undue adverse impact on nearby property, the 

character of the neighborhood, environmental factors, traffic factors, parking, public 

improvements, public property or rights-of-way, or other matters affecting the public health, 

safety, or general welfare, either as they now exist or as they may in the future be developed as a 

result of the implementation of the provisions of the Zoning Ordinance, the Comprehensive Plan 

or any other plan, program, map, or ordinance adopted or under consideration pursuant to official 

notice by the City or other governmental agency having jurisdiction to guide development. 

4.  The proposed Conditional Use Permit (CUP) maintains the desired consistency of land uses, land 

use intensities, and land use impacts as related to the environs of the subject property. 

5.  The proposed Conditional Use Permit (CUP) is located in an area that will be adequately served 

by, and will not impose an undue burden on any improvements, facilities, utilities or services 

provided by public agencies serving the subject property. 

6.  The potential public benefits of the proposed Conditional Use Permit (CUP) outweigh all 

potential adverse impacts of the proposed conditional use after taking into consideration the 

Applicant’s proposal and any requirements recommended by the Applicant to ameliorate such 

impacts. 

B. If, after the public hearing, the Commission wishes to recommend denial, then the appropriate fact 

finding would be one or more of the following: 

1.  In general, the proposed Conditional Use Permit (CUP) is not in harmony with the purposes, 

goals, objectives, policies and standards of the City's Comprehensive Plan, Zoning Ordinance, 

and any other plan, program, or ordinance adopted, or under consideration pursuant to official 

notice by the City. 

2.  Specific to this site, the proposed Conditional Use Permit (CUP) is not in harmony with the 

purposes, goals, objectives, policies and standards of the City's Comprehensive Plan, Zoning 

Ordinance, and any other plan, program, or ordinance adopted, or under consideration pursuant to 

official notice by the City. 

3.  The proposed Conditional Use Permit (CUP) in its proposed location, and as depicted on the 

required site plan does result in a substantial or undue adverse impact on nearby property, the 

character of the neighborhood, environmental factors, traffic factors, parking, public 

improvements, public property or rights-of-way, or other matters affecting the public health, 

safety, or general welfare, either as they now exist or as they may in the future be developed as a 

result of the implementation of the provisions of the Zoning Ordinance, the Comprehensive Plan 

or any other plan, program, map, or ordinance adopted or under consideration pursuant to official 

notice by the City or other governmental agency having jurisdiction to guide development. 



3 
 

4.  The proposed Conditional Use Permit (CUP) does not maintain the desired consistency of land 

uses, land use intensities, and land use impacts as related to the environs of the subject property. 

5.  The proposed Conditional Use Permit (CUP) is not located in an area that will be adequately 

served by, and will impose an undue burden on any of the improvements, facilities, utilities or 

services provided by public agencies serving the subject property. 

6.  The potential public benefits of the proposed Conditional Use Permit (CUP) do not outweigh all 

potential adverse impacts of the proposed conditional use after taking into consideration the 

Applicant’s proposal and any requirements recommended by the Applicant to ameliorate such 

impacts. 

 

 

Staff Recommendation on the Proposed Conditional Use Permit (CUP): 

1. Staff recommends that the Plan Commission recommend approval of the proposed Conditional 

Use Permit (CUP) as submitted, with the findings under A.1-6., above. If they are in agreement 

with the above finding. 

2. Staff recommends the Plan Commission adopt the affirmative set of findings provided above. 

 
 



1 

 

STAFF REPORT 

To Lake Geneva Plan Commission 

Meeting Date: February 18, 2019 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Description: 

The applicant is submitting a request for a General Development Plan (GDP) that would allow for the 

development of a new commercial building to be erected and located at 832 Geneva Street.  

The applicant is requesting to construct a new 5600 square foot commercial building at 832 Geneva 

Street which will have retail area & coffee shop. The proposed site design allows for added green space 

for outdoor seating.  

The property is located in the Central Business (CB) zoning district, onsite parking is not required in the 

Central Business district. 

 

Action by the Plan Commission: 

Recommendation to the Common Council on the proposed General Development Plan (GDP): 

As part of the consideration of the requested GDP, the Plan Commission is required to: 

 Provide the Common Council with a recommendation regarding the proposed GDP; 

 Include findings required by the Zoning Ordinance for GDPs; and, 

 Provide specific suggested requirements to modify the project as submitted. 

 

Staff Review Comments: 

No impacts to neighboring properties are anticipated. 

 

Required Plan Commission Findings on the GDP for Recommendation to the Common Council: 

A proposed GDP must be reviewed by the standards, below: 

A. If, after the public hearing, the Commission wishes to recommend approval, then the appropriate 

fact finding would be all of the following: 

Applicant: 

House Around the Corner 

3389 South Lake Shore Dr. 

Delavan, WI 53115 

Request: Continuation of the public hearing 

General Development Plan (GDP) 

New 5600 sq. ft. Commercial Building 

832 Geneva Street 

Tax Key No. ZOP00252 

 

Agenda Item: 15 



2 

 

1.  In general, the proposed General Development Plan (GDP) is in harmony with the purposes, 

goals, objectives, policies and standards of the City's Comprehensive Plan, Zoning Ordinance, 

and any other plan, program, or ordinance adopted, or under consideration pursuant to official 

notice by the City. 

2.  Specific to this site, the proposed General Development Plan (GDP) is in harmony with the 

purposes, goals, objectives, policies and standards of the City's Comprehensive Plan, Zoning 

Ordinance, and any other plan, program, or ordinance adopted, or under consideration pursuant to 

official notice by the City. 

3.  The proposed General Development Plan (GDP) in its proposed location, and as depicted on the 

required site plan does not result in a substantial or undue adverse impact on nearby property, the 

character of the neighborhood, environmental factors, traffic factors, parking, public 

improvements, public property or rights-of-way, or other matters affecting the public health, 

safety, or general welfare, either as they now exist or as they may in the future be developed as a 

result of the implementation of the provisions of the Zoning Ordinance, the Comprehensive Plan 

or any other plan, program, map, or ordinance adopted or under consideration pursuant to official 

notice by the City or other governmental agency having jurisdiction to guide development. 

4.  The proposed General Development Plan (GDP) maintains the desired consistency of land uses, 

land use intensities, and land use impacts as related to the environs of the subject property. 

5.  The proposed General Development Plan (GDP) is located in an area that will be adequately 

served by, and will not impose an undue burden on any improvements, facilities, utilities or 

services provided by public agencies serving the subject property. 

6.  The potential public benefits of the proposed General Development Plan (GDP) outweigh all 

potential adverse impacts of the proposed conditional use after taking into consideration the 

Applicant’s proposal and any requirements recommended by the Applicant to ameliorate such 

impacts. 

B. If, after the public hearing, the Commission wishes to recommend denial, then the appropriate fact 

finding would be one or more of the following: 

1.  In general, the proposed General Development Plan (GDP) is not in harmony with the purposes, 

goals, objectives, policies and standards of the City's Comprehensive Plan, Zoning Ordinance, 

and any other plan, program, or ordinance adopted, or under consideration pursuant to official 

notice by the City. 

2.  Specific to this site, the proposed General Development Plan (GDP) is not in harmony with the 

purposes, goals, objectives, policies and standards of the City's Comprehensive Plan, Zoning 

Ordinance, and any other plan, program, or ordinance adopted, or under consideration pursuant to 

official notice by the City. 

3.  The proposed General Development Plan (GDP) in its proposed location, and as depicted on the 

required site plan does result in a substantial or undue adverse impact on nearby property, the 

character of the neighborhood, environmental factors, traffic factors, parking, public 

improvements, public property or rights-of-way, or other matters affecting the public health, 

safety, or general welfare, either as they now exist or as they may in the future be developed as a 

result of the implementation of the provisions of the Zoning Ordinance, the Comprehensive Plan 

or any other plan, program, map, or ordinance adopted or under consideration pursuant to official 

notice by the City or other governmental agency having jurisdiction to guide development. 



3 

 

4.  The proposed General Development Plan (GDP) does not maintain the desired consistency of 

land uses, land use intensities, and land use impacts as related to the environs of the subject 

property. 

5.  The proposed General Development Plan (GDP) is not located in an area that will be adequately 

served by, and will impose an undue burden on any of the improvements, facilities, utilities or 

services provided by public agencies serving the subject property. 

6.  The potential public benefits of the proposed General Development Plan (GDP) do not outweigh 

all potential adverse impacts of the proposed conditional use after taking into consideration the 

Applicant’s proposal and any requirements recommended by the Applicant to ameliorate such 

impacts. 

 

 

Staff Recommendation on the Proposed General Development Plan (GDP): 

1. Staff recommends that the Plan Commission recommend approval of the proposed General 

Development Plan (GDP) as submitted, with the findings under A.1-6., above. If they are in 

agreement with the above finding. 

2. Staff recommends the Plan Commission adopt the affirmative set of findings provided above. 

 


	1. February 18 2019 Agenda
	3. January 21 2019 Plan Commission Minutes
	6.a. 741 W Main Street DD Sign
	6.b. 239 Cook Street DD Sign
	7. N891 State Road 120 CSM
	8. N1886 Hwy 120 & N1922 Hwy 120 CSM
	9. 811 Wrigley Drive CSM
	10. 727 Geneva Street PIP
	11. 715 LaGrange Drive CUP
	12. Summerhaven Phase II PIP
	13. Vistas of Lake Geneva GDP continuation
	14. 832 Brick and Mortar CUP continuation
	15. 832 Brick and Mortar GDP continuation



